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THE STA TE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA TION

Victoria F. Sheehan William Cass, P.E.
Commissioner Assistant Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council June 7, 2021

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. (Vendor 177195), Berlin, NH, for an amount not to exceed $1,260,484.00 for
public transportation services in the Coos, Grafton, and Carroll County regions, for the period of July 1,
2021 through June 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 97% Federal
Funds and 3% General Funds.

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2022 and Fiscal
Year 2023, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal
Years if needed and justified.

FY 2022 FY 2023

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $638,300.00 $587,400.00

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
073-509074 Grants Non-Federal $ 17,392.00 $ 17,392.00

EXPLANATION

The Department has approved requests for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding from Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP) to assist in the provision of public transit service.
This agreement includes Federal COVID relief funding including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act enacted March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) enacted December 27, 2020, and'the American Rescue
Plan (ARP) Act enacted March 1 1, 2021. The FTA apportioned funding to all states to support
operating, capital and other expenses generally eligible under the FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Formula
Program and Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program.
This request includes formula and relief funds from each of the aforementioned funding programs as
well as State general funds to assist in meeting the non-federal match requirements.

TCCAP is a private, non-profit organization providing rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Coos and Grafton Counties as North
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Country Transit (NOT) and Carroll County as Carroll County Transit (CCT). The Department has
allocated federal and State funding for the FY 2022-2023 biennium based on prior funding levels,
applications received, and available funds. For the FY 2022-2023 biennium, TCCAP will receive
$750,700.00 of FTA Section 5311 funds, $475,000.00 of FTA Section 5310 funds, and $34,784.00 of
State general funds. Details relative to each funding program and TCCAP's award of these funds are
outlined below.

The Department's proposed SFY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes funds from the FTA Section
5311 Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program (Section 5311) that provides funds for capital, planning,
and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less than 50,000.

The Department released a public notice on January 14, 2021 announcing the availability of FTA
Section 531 1 funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 01, 2021. The Department
received applications for six (6) rural public transit systems and awarded funds to each transportation
system. The systems and their respective application scores are as follows:

.Transit SVskm ;!,t " ij',' 'hi ' Applicant ''L Average Score

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. 89.30%

Sullivan County Transportation Southwestern Community Services 86.30%

Concord Area Transit

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. 82.20%

Carroll County Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.80%

(Keene) City Express

VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community
Services 78.70%

North Country Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.30%

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Transit Grants
Coordinator, and the Transportation Specialist reviewed, evaluated, and scored FTA Section 5311
applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials and the Department's State
Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation matrix is provided below for reference:

i  .Evaluation.Criteria !; Weifiiit

1
The proposed service effectively addresses a demonstrated community need, and/or the
proposed service is a continuation or expansion of existing services.

15%

2
The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its
service.

15%

3 ;The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services. 15%

The application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service area:
public, nonprofit, and for-proflt.

10%

11

5;
The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government.

10%

6
The applicant demonstrates effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of
transportation services.

10%



7

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in
ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New applicants must
demonstrate the ability to measure perfontiance and achieve goals.

15%

8
The applicant complies with relevant federal and state regulations and has a history of
compliance with regulations and reporting requirements.

10%

100%

Note: Every application met the Department's criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2022-2023 public
transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the transit systems.

TCCAP has also been awarded FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities Formula Program (Section 5310) funds in the amount of $475,000.00 for the FY 2022-2023
biennium. These funds will be used to provide expanded transportation services in the Region I Grafton-
Coos Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) service area. TCCAP will act as the lead agency to ensure
the provision of accessible demand response transportation services for seniors and individuals with
disabilities within the region and will support mobility management and strategic planning activities in
cooperation with the Region I RCC.

The Section 5310 RCC funds were allocated by region according to a formula based on regional
populations of residents over 65 and those between the ages of 5-64 with disabilities. Each individual
RCC was responsible for conducting its own project solicitation, evaluation, and prioritization and then"
submitting one regional application for eligible Section 5310 RCC projects through an approved lead
agency. The Grafton-Coos RCC designated TCCAP as the lead agency for Region I and tasked TCCAP
with applying for Section 5310 RCC funds on behalf of Region I. As required by FTA, this project is
identified in a locally developed coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan.

The Department's proposed SFY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes $200,000.00 of Stale Funds
per year to assist 10 public transit systems with matching FTA Section 5311 (Rural) or 5307 (Urban)
operating funds. The State Funds will be distributed to transit systems based on three ridership tiers and
will be distributed as follows:

Category Agency Ridership SFY 2022 SFY 2023

Tier 1: Less than 50,000 Rides " ■

TCCAP- North Country Transit 26,319 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

TCCAP- Carroll County Transit 1,720 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

Southwestern Community
Services

18,007 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

VNA @ HCS (Keene City
Express)

23,014 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

CART (an MTA service) 1 1,607 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

Subtotal $43,480.00 $43,480.00

Tier 2: 50,000 to 200,000 Rides "
BMCAP- Concord Area Transit 71,177 , $17,392.00 $17,392.00

Subtotal $17392.00 $17392.00

Tier 3: Over 200,000 Rides



Advance Transit 630,023 $34^782.00 $34,782.00

Manchester Transit Authority
CMTA)

309,983 $34,782.00 $34,782.00

City of Nashua (Nashua Transit) 340,677 $34,782.00 $34,782.00

COAST 330,800 $34,782.00 $34,782.00

Subtotal $139,128.00 $139,128.00

Total Ridership Distribution $200,000.00 $200,000.00

Eight agencies operate the 10 public transit systems and will receive state operating funds in the
amounts listed above. The state funds will assist public transit systems in meeting the non-federal match
requirements and will provide financial support for New Hampshire's public transit services. Non-
federal matching funds of at least 50% are required for transit operations. TCCAP operates two separate
public transit systems: Carroll County Transit and North Country Transit. Both Carroll County Transit
and North Country Transit are included in the Tier I ridership category; each will receive $8,696.00 per
year and a total of $17,392.00 for the biennium. TCCAP, as an agency, will receive a total of $34,780.00
for both transit systems for the SPY 2022-2023 biennium.

TCCAP, in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining required non-
federal matching funds. Stimulus funding supported by FTA at 100% in the form of CARES, CRRSAA,
and ARP will be utilized by drawing against the CARES balance first and then CRRSAA and ARP
funds. If Federal Funds become unavailable, no additional general funds will be requested to support
this program.

The agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. Copies of the fully
executed agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative
Services' Office; and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of
Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

Victoria F. Sheehan

Commissioner

Attachments



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 11/7/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its anachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutuallyagrec as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

].l State Agency Name
NH Deportment of Transportation

1.2 State Agency Address
PC Box 483,7 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03302-0483

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri'County Community Action Program, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570-1911

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-752-7001

1.6 Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-072-

500575

1.7 Completion Date
June 30,2023

] .8 Price Limitation

51,260,484.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Michelle Winters, Administrator, Bureau of ̂il & Transit

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-2468

1.11 Contraetoa^Si^ature 1 \

Date: ̂  | [0

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

^  fittcoHxviC

1.13 Stat^flcncy Signature 1.14 Name and Ti|iQft^^|^ 4^f)|fj^ignatory
Director

Aeronautics, Rail and Transit

1.15 A^roval by thc N.H. Dqiartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

Br f-ouX] C- 6/iUoi\
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State''), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goodjt, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATEyCOM PLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Goverrwr and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hmunder, shall become cfTcctive on the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated In
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notvrithstanding any .provision jof this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
ftinds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement wd
the Scope for Services provide in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Stale be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated liinds. In
the event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such
funds become available, if ever, and shall have die right to
reduce or terminate the Services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or soiure to the Account
identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account arc
reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT C which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be ihc
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
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performance hereof, and .shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Coniractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the perfontiance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
enq>loyrncnt opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the
Contractor shall comply with oil federal executive orders, rules,
regulations and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and
guidelines as the State or the United States issue to implement
these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with all
applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coniractor shall not
discriminate against cn^loyccs or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap,
sexual orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to pcnnii the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts
for (he purpose of ascertaining conqiliance with all rules,
regulations and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed
and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this Agreement.
This provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event of
any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

ofS
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant term or condition
of this Agreement
8.2 Upon dte occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Dcfeult and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days firom the date of (be notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely cured, terminate this Agreement, efTectivc two (2)
days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments (p be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and set off against any other obligations the State
may owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by
reason of any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in eqtiity,
or both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights
with regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event
of Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce
each and alt of the provisions hereof upon any further or other
Event of Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pert, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Offtcer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the
date of termination, a report ('Tenninolion Report") describing
in detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned,
to and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report described
in the attached EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's
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discretion, the Contractor shall, within IS day.s of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition
Plan for services under the Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rqiroductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, alt whether
finished or unfinishod.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from the
State or piirchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be
returned to the State upon demand or upon termination of this
Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Conftdcntiallty of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of (he State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice,
which shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (IS) days
prior to the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For
purposes of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions
in which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any
provisions contained in a subcontract or an aSvSignmcnt
agreement to which it is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by
law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the
State, its officers and employees, fix>m and against any and all
claims, liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property
damages, patent or copyright infringement, or other claims
asserted against the State, its officers or employees, which arise
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out of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or
omission of the Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not
limited to the negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The
State shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor
arising under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force; the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than 51,000,000 per ckcurrencc and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1 ;2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department oflnsurancc,
and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all rencwa](s) of insurance required under diis
Agreement no later than ton (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy. The ceitificate(s) of insurance
and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is In compliance with or
exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers 'Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to
this Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting
Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of
Workers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable rcnewal(8) thereof, which
shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The
State shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of Now Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to ^e parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Coimcil of the State of New Hampshire unless no
such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rtUe or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent,
and no rule of constrtiction shall be applied against or in favor
of any party. Any actions orising out of this Agreement shall be
brought and maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court
which shall have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc
incorporated herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of conyetcnt jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions
of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes ell prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject
matter hereof.
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TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Special Provisions

EXHIBIT B Scope of Services

EXHIBIT C Budget

EXHIBIT D Vehicle List

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

DDL Special Warranty - Unified Protective Arrangement

2 CFR Part 200

FTA Section 5310

FTA Section 5311

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend P-37 Section 2. ̂ 'EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTORySBRVlCES TO BE
PERFORMED" by adding the following:

2.1 The Contractor may change services only with the prior written agreement of the State
and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend P-37 SecHon 5. "CONTRACT PRICEA>RICE LIMITATION/PAYMENT' by
adding the following:

5.5 As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the
Contractor shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80%
of allowable administrative and capital costs. Operating, administrative and capital costs
are idcntifjed in Exhibit B. The Contractor shall provide and document the availability
of local fiinds sufficient to meet the project cost in excess of the Contract Price
Limitation.

5.6 In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of
total allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the

^  Completion Date and made available to the State upon demand.

5.7 The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the
State on a monthly or quarterly basis, together with all information to siqjport the request.
Such requests for payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for
payments must be for allowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for
advance payment will be accepted by the State.

5.8 Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine
the allowability of costs. In coiinection with this review, the State may demand
production of (and the Contractor shall produce) and inspect any documents and records
described in Section 5.

5.9 Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records
required by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount
due and owing to the Contractor wd shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions
of this Agreement. Contract reimbursements shall not exceed 50% of the total contract
amount in any given quarter.

5.10 Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by
this Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month
or portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of
the State and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained
and withheld pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this
Agreement and resolution of all pending matters.



A.3. Amend P-37 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY CONTflACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY" by adding the following:

6.4 The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants
for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

6.5 The Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race,
color, age, creed, sex or national origin.

6.6 The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and
any subcontracts under this agreement.

A.4. Amend P-37 Section 9. "DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/PRESERVATION" by
adding the following:

9.4 The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of
this agreement:
a) Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not publish or reproduce such

data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Contractor authorize
others to do so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA
may have either released or approved the release of such data to the public.

b) As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others
to use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative
agreement, sub-grant, or third party contract, irrespective of whether a copyright has
been obtained; and any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third
party contractor purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.5 It is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Contractor understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.4 (b) above,
FTA may make available to any recipient, subgrantee, contractor or subcontractor its
license in the copyright to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data
first produced under this Agreement.

9.6 The Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation
of the proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication,
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data ftimishcd under this
Agreement.

9.7 Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any
patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise
granted to the United States under any patent.

9.8 Sections 9.4,9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Contractor
by the State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement;
provided that such incorporated material is identified by the Contractor at the time of



delivery of such work.

9.9 , In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under that
' project shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the
State or FTA may direct.

A.5. Amend P-37 Section 10. "TERMrN ATION" by adding the following:

10.1 The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) prior to fmai payment.

10.2 Termination; Liability. In the event of termination under Section 4 or 10.4 of this
Agreement, the acceptance of a Termination Report by the Stale shall in no event relieve
the Contractor from any and all liability for damages sustained or incurred by the State
as a result of the Contractor's breach of its obligations hereunder, including refund of any
federal funds required by FTA.

10.3 Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Contractor
which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Contract Price, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the
parties hereto.

10.4 Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the
Contractor hereunder, the Contractor may terminate this Agreement without cause upon
thirty (30) days written notice.

A.6. Amend P-37 Section 12. "ASSIGNMENTS/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS" by
adding the following:

12.1 The Contractor shall cause the provisions of this contract to be inserted in all subcontracts
for any work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each
subcontractor; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to
subcontractors for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. The Contractor shall
take such action with respect to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Contractor shall
ensure that any subcontractor has obtained all licenses, permits or approvals required for
the performance of contract services.

A.7. Amend P-37 Section 14. "INSURANCE" by adding the following:

14.1.1.a. The State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation has accepted the General
Liability insurance of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 General Aggregate for Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. in fulfillment of the requirements of Section
14.1.1 General Liability Insurance of the P-37 form.

A,8. Amend P-37 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS



ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services
described in Exhibit A and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to
the State detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Contract as
modified and approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Contractor. Revenues also include funds from contracts,
purchase of service agreement, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the
transportation service.

SECTION5311: Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended.

STATE: The Slate ofNcw Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend P-37 by adding "ACCOUNTrNG, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

.1. Ledgers. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each
budget category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the
Contractor. The ledger sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will
indicate the funds remaining in each line item of the Contract Budget at the beginning of
each month. Entries shall be made on a running basis and carried over to the following
month; that is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively. Contractor shall also prepare
and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such information is not
provided with invoices.

.2. Accounts Receivable. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Contractor shall prepare and
maintain receipt vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt. Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall credit all revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall establish and maintain an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt
number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to the receipt voucher number. A receipt
voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State and shall identify each
component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each deposit should
be attached to the receipt voucher.

.3. Payables. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures
of funds. The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a
form approved by the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will
be drawn, the date of expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any
appropriate comments supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll
vouchers). All invoices.received by the Contractor shall be checked for accuracy and
allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the Contract Manager or



designee. Immediately upon payment, Contractor and/or subcontractor shall make entries
to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each subcontractor shall identify
a Contract Manager).

.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain
two registers that will.contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers
will provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount and purpose of action. No
self-designated abbreviations are to be used.

.5. Check Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This register
is also considered a book of original entry, and is posted (o the ledger immediately.

.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall require each of its
employees to; 1) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent
on such work, or 2) be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the
cogniz^t Federal agency. The contractor shall summarize time reports by task and apply
employee's rates of pay to the hours worked. The Contract Manager shall review completed
and signed time reports, and cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the
generaliedger. The Contractor shall maintain records of employee payroll and benefits and
shall post this information to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Contract
Manager shall ensure that all payments are on a timely basis.

.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Contractor shall submit a description of Contract
activities, in a format as required by the State. Should the Contractor show a profit for any
month, the Contractor shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement
requests. The Contractor shall agree to provide information in addition to the monthly
narrative at such times and in such manner as the State may require, and to prepare any
reports which may be requested by the State including but not limited to a final or
termination report if operations cease.

.8. Maintenance of Records. The Contractor shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Contractor shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the
Contractor's operations or records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution
shall rest with the State.

.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period
of three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters
relating to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Contractor's normal
business hours, and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Contractor shall make
available to the State and FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters covered
by this Agreement. The Contractor shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine, and
reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls,
records of personnel. Data (as defined in P-37 section 9.1) and other information relating
to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Contractor" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Contractor in 1.3 of P-37.



.10. Independent Audit. The Contractor shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public
Accountant (CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the
project upon demand. Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the
Contract Budget for that specific purpose.

.10.1. In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State fixim the
Contractor, for whatever reasons, the Contractor shall pay to the State such sums
within thirty (30) days of the audit date.

.11. The Contractor shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter activity
reports within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information
or reports required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Database (NTD)
reporting.

A.IO. Amend P-37 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section
27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and
conditions apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with
funds provided through this or other Agreements between the State and the Contractor:

a. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular
4220.IF and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts
661 ̂ d 663.

b. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State, unless the Contractor has received prior
approval fk)m the State to procure vehicles.

c. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be
purchased by the Contractor subject to the prior approval of the State.

d. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Contractor; provided,
however, that in order to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the
Contractor shall give the State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of
purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other acts necessary or
useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection with the

V purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Confractor shall give
the State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take
all steps necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to
identify the State as a lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

e. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property
becomes the property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to
such equipment shall be transferred to the Stale as soon as feasible. Project equipment
will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040. IG, and the State
Management Plan.

A.11. Amend P-37 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:



28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Contractor shall maintain a current inventory
listing of all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Contract shall
submit to the State a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall
be supplied to the State by each year, generally by June 30"^.

A.I2. Amend P-37 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment used in the service described in Exhibit D. Contractor
shall maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and
mechanical soundness. The contractor shall certify that a proper maintenance plan
that meets or exceeds the original equipment manufacturer's preventive
maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must be approved
by the Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical improvement
activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Contractor and at a location
specified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the State of any changes in
this location. The Contractor further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any
physical improvement to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA
and/or their designees shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the
purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.

A.13. Amend P-37 by adding "REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Contractor shall maintain a complete and
up to date record of all motor vehicle repairs, and shall make such records available to
the State and FTA upon demand.

A.M. Amend P-37 by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 31:

31. VEHICLE STORAGE. With respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or part
under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Contractor shall park or
garage each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each
vehicle. The Contractor shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in
such a manner that its daily operations arc not impaired or curtailed by conditions of
weather or any other circumstances. The Contractor shall notify the State of the location
of the garaging site and any relocation.

A.15. Amend P-37 by adding "TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW" as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The Slate may require participation in training
courses determined to be essential to FTA program management in this contract period
and may require participation in such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers
and other employees involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include
defensive driving, passenger assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher
training every three (3) years. The Contractor agrees that the State shall have the right to
review the performance of all drivers who are employed in connection with this
Agreement, and to disallow the use of any driver whose performance as a driver is
determined to be unsatisfactory by the State.



A.16. Amend P-37 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. All project equipment shall be inspected and certified
by the Department of Safety, and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under
RSA 266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

The Contractor shall provide the State with full and prompt written notification of any
accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the Contractor shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

The Contractor shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering
the previous year (January 1 through December 31), summarizing the results of its
alcohol misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall
be in compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.

The Contractor shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

A.17. Amend P-37 by adding "SERVICE LIMITATIONS" as section 34:

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS, The Contractor shall not engage in the provision of
transportation services other than those described in Exhibit A, or outside the service area
described in Exhibit A, without the written consent of the State and without obtaining the
appropriate operating authority. The Contractor shall not engage in charter or school bus
operations except as permitted by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respectively.

A.18. Amend P-37 by adding "CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35:

35. CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS. Contractor warrants that with respect to the
Services to be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are
required by any law, order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may
be necessary for the performance of the Services hereunder. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform such Services, and
shall be properly licensed and authorized to perform such Services under all applicable
laws.

A.19. Amend P-37 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Contractor agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of
the Unified Protective Arrangement, Section 533(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended,
incorporated herein for the protection of the employees of any employer providing
transportation services assisted by this Agreement, and the employees of any other
surface transportation providers in the transportation service area identified in Exhibit A.

A.20. Amend P-37 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37:

37. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Contractor is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this Contract,



which invention, improvement or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the
United States or any foreign country, the Contractor shall immediately notify the State
and provide a detailed report. The rights and responsibilities of the Contractor and the
State with respect to such invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in
accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies and any waiver thereof.

A.21. Amend P-37 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Contractor warrants that it has-not
employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working
solely for the Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely
for the Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other
consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.
For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have the rî t to annul this
Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage, brokerage fee, giff, or contingent fee.

Rev 4/26/21



TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Contractor, Tri-County Community Action Program (hereinafter the "Contractor"),
shall provide the following ADA-accessible public transit services:

a. Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in Coos
and Grafton Counties as detailed in the "Project Description" of the Contractor's
application to the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and
Transit.(hereinafter "NHDOT") for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section

53II funding. The Contractor's application is hereby incorporated by reference and
made part of this agreement.

b. Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in
Carroll County as detailed in the "Project Description" of the Contractor's FTA
Section 5311 application to the NHDOT. The Contractor's application is hereby
incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement.

c. Serve as the lead agency for Region 1 Grafton - Coos Regional Coordinating Council
(RCC) for FTA Section 5310 RCC funds to provide accessible transportation services
to seniors and individuals with disabilities in cooperation with the Region 1 Grafton -
Coos RCC. The Contractor's 5310 RCC grant application is hereby incorporated by
reference and made part of this agreement. The Contractor agrees to provide all
services indicated in the grant application unless modified per this agreement.

2. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 5311 -funded public
transit services provided by Contractor pursuant to this agreement:

a. The Commissioner of the Department of Transportation or the Commissioner's
designee (hereinafter the "Commissioner") may require the Contractor to provide
additional transportation services or to reduce transportation services provided under
this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services shall be submitted in
writing by the Commissioner to the Contractor. The Contractor shall implement the
alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
Commissioner and the Contractor.

b. The Contractor may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Contractor's grant application to the NHDOT, to add, reduce, or adjust'transportation
services provided under this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services,
including alterations for the provision of service to special events, shall be requested
in writing by the Contractor to the Commissioner for approval at least 30 days in
advance. Revisions subject to a public comment period shall be requested at least 60
days in advance. Upon approval of the Commissioner, the Contractor shall implement
any alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
Commissioner and the Contractor.



c. The Contractor shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service or
operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the
Commissioner, except in an emergency situation. In such an emergency, the
Contractor shall notify the Commissioner no later than the next working day
following the day of such changes. Such emergency changes will be valid for a
maximum of five days; thereafter, the written approval of the Commissioner shall be
required to continue such emergency changes.

d. All project vehicles, including those Federally-funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit D,
Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as well as
any additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance with all
applicable Federal and State laws as well as NHDOT requirements.

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FT A Section 5310-funded services
for seniors and individuals with disabilities provided by Contractor pursuant to this
agreement:

a. Mobility management activities, and as applicable, traiwportation services,
subcontractors, and maximum reimbursement rates, shall consist of those submitted
in the Contractor's 5310 Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) application or as
subsequently modified by NHDOT through written notification to the Contractor.
Further amendments to mobility management activities, transportation services,
subcontractors, and/or maximum reimbursement rates require RCC approval, as
documented in official minutes, as well as written approval from the Commissioner.

b. Eligible Regional Mobility Manager expenses shall be limited to those directly
related to the position's role as described within the 2016 New Hampshire Statewide
Coordination of Community Transportation Services Plan, hereby incorporated by
reference. Roles may be further modified based on those recommended by the
Statewide Coordinating Council (SCC) and approved in writing by the
Commissioner.

c. All services provided shall conforra to FTA Section 5310 guidelines. Per FTA
requirements, the Contractor shall be responsible for oversight of subrccipients and
contractors relative to FTA requirements.

d. The Contractor shall ensure the provision of ADA accessible services within the RCC
region. Any marketing materials, brochures, and other service information shall
describe it as ADA-acccssible. It is acceptable for a subcontractor/lower-tier
subrecipient that does not utilize accessible vehicles to contract with an accessible
provider in order to meet this requirement.



e. The Contractor must fulfill its contractual obligations and provide its scope of
services throughout the contract period regardless of mobility management expenses
exceeding the maximum allowed to be reimbursed.

f. The Commissioner may require the Contractor to provide additional transportation
services or to reduce transportation services provided under this contract. Any
alterations to such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the
Commissioner to the Contractor. The Contractor shall implement the alterations
within thirty (30) days unless another timeframe is agreed to by the Commissioner
and the Contractor.

g. Services shall last the entire contract period. As necessary, the Contractor shall
establish trip priorities to ensure funds are not expended prematurely.

4. The following terms and conditions apply to State Operating Amds:

a. State operating matching funds shall be used to provide a portion of the non-Federal
Funds required to match Federal Transit Administration (FTA) operating funds for
public transportation services provided by the Contractor and as further detailed on
the Contractor's website.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

The Contract price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, are FTA Section
53II and Section 5310 portions of the eligible project costs as well as State Operating
funds. Federal (FTA) and State funds are granted as follows:

FTA Section 5311 SFY 2022 SFY 2023

Coos & Graftoh Coaoties

Administration $69,100.00 $66,500.00

Capital Preventive Maintenance $29,100.00 $28,000.00

Capital ADA $0.00 $0.00

OperatinK $166,000.00 $132,200.00

Sob Total Coos & Grafton Counties $264,200.00 $226,700.00

Carroll County* SFY 2022 SFY 2023

Administration $61,000.00 $59,000.00

Capital Preventive Maintenance $22,400.00 $21,700.00

Capital ADA $0.00 $0.00

Op'eratinR $53,200.00 $42,500.00

Sub Total Carroll County $136,600.00 $123300.00

Total FTA 5311 Fundiufi $400,800.00 $349300.00

State Operating Match

Coos & Grafton Counties $8,696.00 $8,696.00

Carroll County $8,696.00 $8,696.00

Total State Operatioc Match $17,392.00 $17392.00

FTA Section 5310 RCC SFY 2022 SFY 2023

Contracted Services $115,089.00 $115,089.00

Mobility Management Activities $72,411.00 $72,411.00

Regional Mobility Manager $50,000.00 $50,000.00

Total FTA 5310 RCC Fundloe $237,500.00 $237,500.00

Total Federal (FTA) Funds $638300.00 $587,400.00

Total State Funds $17392.00 $17392.00

Total Contract Funds $655,692.00 $604,792.00

Total Two-Year Contract Funds $1360,484.00

a. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

II. Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Contractor's first request for
reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit to the Commissioner a budget incorporating all
funds to be expended in the provision of services pursuant to this contract. Budget revisions
may be made with written approval of the Commissioner. Unless otherwise advised by
NHDOT, budget revisions may only request the transfer of funds within a category or
between categories with the same matching ratio.



m. The Contractor may seek reimbursement for these flmds by submitting a monthly or
quarterly invoice for the total eligible expenses, less agency match as applicable, to
NHDOT. The invoice must include verification of source(s) of matching funds and
statements from service providers, as applicable, to support the request for matching flmds.

IV. Reimbursement of state operating funds shall be requested via monthly invoices until
operating funds are fully expended.

V. The Contractor's submitted invoices shall indicate the month(s) for which the state
operating matching funds are being applied, the amount of FTA flmds Ae state operating
matching flmds are leveraging, and the FTA grant program from which the Contractor will
draw down the FTA flmds.

VI. Mobility management costs shall be itemized and include such information as required to
support the request.

VII. The Contractor will verify that trip reimbursement is for non-Medicaid-cligible trips only.

VIII. For expenses other than contracted services, the Contractor may seek reimbursement only
for eligible expenses listed in the budget and detail-of-cost form provided by the State, with
die exception of flmds specifically reserved, if any, and identified in "Specifically
Programmed Funds," at the end of this Exhibit.

IX. At the sole discretion of the Commissioner, the Contractor may carry forward any
unexpended portion of the federal flmds included in the Contract Price to a subsequent
contract, if any, between the State and the Contractor.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
EXHIBIT D

VEHICLE LIST

Total Vehicles: 15

2020 Ford Transit 1FDAX2C85LKA63998

2020 Ford Transit 1FDAX2C83LKA63997

2019 Ford Cutaway 1FDFE4FS1KDC73998

2010 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 ̂as bus IFDEE3FL9ADBbl487

2010 Eldorado Aerolite i&2 eas bus 1FDEE3FL1ADB01483

2010 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 pas bus 1FDEE3FL2ADB01489

2010 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 pas bus 1FDEE3FL0ADB01488

2011 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 bus 1FDEE3FL0BDA73420

2011 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 Gas Bus 1FDEE3FL9BDA73421

2011 Staitrans Senator 11 bus 16&2 1FDFE4FS6ADB01898

2013 Ford Phoenix 8&2 pasoline 1FDEE3FL7DDA41956

2016 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passcnper Bus 1FDEE3FS7GDC57852

2016 Ford £350 8 & 2 Passenper Bus 1FDEE3FS9GDC57853

2016 Ford E3S0 8 & 2 Passenper Bus 1FDEE3FS5GDC57851

2017 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passcnper 1FDEE3FS8HIX:29270



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COl/NTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRl-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as for as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005362631

9^
V

la.

o

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 5th dt^ of May A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_Sandy Alonzo , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Chair/Vice Chair/ Secretary of _Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of DirMtors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ^September 29th 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Dale)

VOTED: That Jeanne Roblllard, CEO; Randall Pllotte, CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Cpntract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of TrI-Cpunty Community Action Program, lnc._ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority rern^ns valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the per$on(8) listed above currently occupy the
positton(8) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the cofporatlon in contrarts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: iQ-
Signature of Elec:
Name: Sandy Aid
Title; Board Chair

cer

Rev. 03/24/20



ACOptf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMfflOrrYYYJ

01/28/2021

THIS CERTinCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER($), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

WPORTAim n Iht certHlcatt holder Is an ADOmOMAL INSURED, the poBcyllts) must have ADDfTIQMAL INSURED provlalona or be endoraad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms end conditions of the policy, certain poBclaa may require an endorsamant A atatament on
thia rartifleata doee not confer rlghti to the certified holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PftOOUCS)

FIAi/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

Andrea NickBn

(603)069-3218 (803)645-4331

Annwii- arMdnQcrosaagency.oom
MSUXERfS) AFFORDINO COVERAOB NACe

MSURERA- PhOadaiphla Indemnity Ins Co 18056

KSURED

TrLCounty Community Actiofl Program. Inc

30 Exchange SSaet

B«rln NH 03570

IN8URER B: (*^^16 State HsatOi Care and Human Services Self-
INSURCRC:

IMSURERO:

IMSUtianE:

IMSUREflP:

Iksr
LTIt

THIS O TO CERTIFY THATTME POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE NSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANOINO ANY REQUIREMEMT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRSED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
Fxra iuunNS and conditions of such polices, limits shown may have been REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ROSTET? fOdCVErf
LMBTS

TYPCOFIOURANCe rmrwi POUCVMUHSER

COMISRCIAL GENERAL UABtUTY

CLNimiAOE OCCUR

CeWLAGGReOATE LIMIT APPICS PER

I  IlocPCUCY JECT

OTHER:

AUrOMOBU UABUTY

AMYAUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HREO
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
HOH<rHHEO
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK21S00S5

PHPK21S0050

RtwDorrrm

07/Q1/2020

07/01/2020

fwwuDOAnrwi

07/01/2021

07^)1/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMLCETOHERTCD
PWEMtSES IE> uoMwrK*!

MED EXP (Arty Ore pffun)

PERSONAL 4 ADVNJURV

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPOPAGG

COMaNEOSWGLELMlf
(EiAccMtnll

BODILY DLTURYIPr

BODILY nirURY (P« MdM)

PROPERTY OAAIAGE ""
IPificdSenll

Und*rinsur*<l motorist

1J)00,000

100.000

5,000

1,000,000

3B00.000

, 3,000,000

s 1/X)0.0CI0

s 1,000,000

UMBRELLA UAS

BXCESBLIAB

OCCUR

CLAimiADE

EAoTocciwgS^ 2,000,000

PHUB728176 07/01/2020 07/01/2021 AGGREGATE
2,000.000

DEO X RETEWTTON $ ̂ 0-000
WORKERS COMPCNSATION

AND EMPUrrERT LMBOfTT

ANY PROPIUETOfVPARTNERRDCECUnVE
0PPICERACM8ER EXCLUOEDT
ptwSstoiy In Wi)
VyaAdMCHbaunMr■ y««.OMcnMunoir

Y/M

0

XIS^ I

HCHS20210000426 (3a.) NH 02/01/2021 02/01/2022
EX.EACHACCE)ewT 1,000,000

E.U DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

oesCRPTlON OP OPeRATX)M81 EX. 0IS6ASE-POLICY LMIT 1,000,000

PrsfesslonBl Liabiflty
PHPK2150055 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

Each Occurrertce

AQgregate

1,000,000

3.000,000

DESCRmON OP OPERAnONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD ISLASdMonM Rint«ta SdMBul«,iiwy ba MMchadBcMnapae* ta r*M*id|

New Hampshire Department of Transportation Rail and Transit

PC Box 483

7 Kazan Drive

Concord NH 03302-0483
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WfTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AimtonzED REPfcaEHrATwe

ACORO 25 (2016A)3) Hit ACORO namt and logo art rtgltttrtd marfct of ACDRD



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2021 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant:

The Applicant certifies to the qjplicable provisions ofcategories 01-21.

Or.

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions ofthe categories it has selected:

Category Certification

01 Certifications and Assurances Required ofEveiy Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

ID Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited, a
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grante Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission ^
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Cenifications and Assurances Fi^l Year 2021^

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Construction Hiring Preferences

20 Cybcrsecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stodc and
Operations

21 Tribal Transit Programs

PKDERAL nSCAL VRARMttl FTA CERTIPfCATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE
PAGB

(Rcqmrwj ofall A]^)Ucsnts for federa] assistance lo be awarded by FTA in FY 2021)

AFFIRMATION OF APPUCANT

Name ofihe AopKcanl: iMC-

BY SICB4IN0 BELOW, on bduUfofibB Applicant, I declare diat it has duly authorized mo Id make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind its con^liance. Hms. it agrees to comp^with all fedaal hwa^ irg>ilmion%
aad requirenteni^ fellow federal guidance, and comply with fee Certifications and Assurances ss

CD the fencing page amdtcable to each ̂jplication its Authorized Representative makes to (be Fedaal
Transit Admmistratioo (FTA) in federal fiscal year 2(121. inespective ofwhefeerdte individual (hat acted on Us or
her AppltMnTs behalf continues to represent it.

FTA intends that fee rHlificatw"* and Assurances fee Applicant selects on the ofeer side ofthis document
should appty to each Award for wtddi it now seeks, or may later seek federal asststance to be awarded during
federal fiscal year 2021.

The Applicant affinns (be truthfulness and accuracy oflhe Certifications end Aasuranccs H has selected in (he
ctrtwnpnn wife feis document and aqy other submission made to FTA sod admowkd^ (hat fee
Program Fraud OvU Roitodies Act of 1986 a U.S.C § 3801 etseg.. and implemmting U^. DOT regulations,
"Program Fraud Remedies," 49 CFRpazt 31. qjply to any certification, assurance or nfemmion made to



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021

FTXTTe criminal provisioDS of BUSiC § MDl apply lo aty ocrtificrtMO, acuimce,
cooncctkm wi& a federal pubBc tran^KJrtation pfDgnm miQiorizod ly « U5.C daptcr SJ or ay o&er it^

fa ligDing this docunrnt, I declare under pcnaltks ofpc^ lhat (he ftacgoing CotificatkaB sod Acunmoa, and
any otfwr itBten^Usjnsde \rf as oDjbehalfofthe Applicani arc tns sod acavste.

SjgDStxoe:

Nbdc

Date

Audsnied Represaxtative ofAppUcant 657



FFY 2021 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Master Agr^ent
requires recipiaits and subrccipients to comply with the requiremCTts contauied in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire D^)artmcnt of Transportation (NHDOT).

1 acknowledge reccipt.of die FFY 2021 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 02/04/21

Name of Agency Date

Jeanne'L Robiliard

Name of Authorized Official Signature



Qffig# of Labor-Management Standards

Special Warranty Arrangement

For Application to Other Than Urbanized and Over-the-Road Bus Accessibility
Projects

PURSUANT TO SEaON 5333(b) OF

TITLE 49 OF THE U^. CODE, CHAPTER 53

Jenuary3,20tl

The following language shall be made part of the contract of assistance by reference In the Federal Transit Administration's Master
Agreement as signed by the grantee:

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protection of the transportation-related employees In the
transportation service area of the Project As a precondition of the release of assistance by the Grantee/State Agency to any
Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Recipient to these obligations by Incorporating this arrangement Into the
contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Reciplent(s), by referer>^ If a Grants fails to comply with the terrhs of the
Warranty and falls to bind a Recipient as a precondition to the release of funds, the Grantee will be a guarantor of the required
protections and the Grantee will be required to act as if It were the Recipient of funds unless and until the Grantee is able to secure
the retroactive agreement of the Recipient to be bound by the terms of the Warranty.

These protective arrangements are intended for the benefit of transit employees In the service area of the project, who are
considered as third-party t>eneflci8rie$ to the employee protective arrangements Incorporated by referenced in the grant contract
between the U^. Department of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signify by executing that
contract Transit employees are also third party beneficiaries to the protective arrangements incorporated in subsequent contracts
of assistance between the Grantee and any Recipient Employees, or their representative, may assert claims with respect to the
protective arrangements under this provision. This clause creates no Independent cause of action against the United States
Government

The term "service area." as used herein, includes the geographic area over which the Project is operated and the area whose
population is served by the Project, Including adjacent areas affected by the Project The term "Union," as used herein, shall refer to
any labor organization representing employees providing public transportation services in the service area of a ̂ ject assisted
under the grant The term "employee," as used hereiri. shall Include individuals who may or may not be represented by a Union.
The term "Recipiwt" as used herein, shall refer to any employerts) receiving transportation assistance under the grant The term
"Grantee," as used herein, shall refer to the applicant for assistance; a Grantee which receives assistance is also a Recipient.

Where the Department of Labor (the Department) deems it necessary to modify the requirements of this Special Warranty
Arrangement so tfiat a particular Grantee or Recipient can continue to satisfy the requirements of the statute, the Department will
Issue a supplementary certification letter setting forth the alternative provisions to be Included in the contract of assistance
between the Grantee and FTA, by reference. These terms will be made binding upon the particular Grantee or Recipient, along with
these terms and conditions, for each subsequent grant of assistance until withdrawn in writing by the Department.

(1) The Prefect shall be carried out in such a manner and upon such terms and conditions as will not adversely affect employees of
the Recipient and of any other surface public transportation provider in the transportation service area of the Rroject It shall be an
obligation of the Itedpleht to assure that any and all transportation services assisted by the Project are contracted for and operated
In such a manner that they do not Impair the rights and interests of affected employees. Tlw term "Project," as used herein, shall
not be limited to the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall Include any changes, whether
organizational, operational, technological, or otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a result of the
Project," shall, when used in this arrangement, include events related to the Project occurring in anticipation of, during, and
subsequent to the Project and any program of efficiencies or economies related thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and
falls of business, or changes in volume and character of employment brought about solely by causes other than the Project
(including any economies or efficiencies unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this arrangement.

An employee covered by this arrangement, who is not dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened in his/her position with regard
to employment as a result of the Project, but who is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened solely because of the total or
partial termination of the Project or exhaustion of Project funding shall not be deemed eligible for a dismissal or displacement
allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (6) and (7) of this arrangement



(21 Where employees of a Recipient are represented for collective bargaining purposes, ail Projea services provided by that
Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement appUuble to such employees which

is then In effect. This Arrangement does not create any collective bargaining relationship where one does not already exist or
between any Recipient and the employees of another employer. Where the Recipient has no collective bargaining relationship with
the Unions representing employees in the service area, the Recipient will not take any action which impairs or Interferes with the
rights, privileges, and benefits and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargainii^g rights of such employees.

(3) All rights, privileges, and benefits (including pension rights and benefits) of employees covered by this arrangement (including
employees having already retired) under existing collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, or under any revision or renewal
thereof, shall be preserved and continued: provided, however, that such rights, privileges and berteflts which are not foreclosed
from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modlRed by collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient
and the Union involved to sub^itute other rights, privil^s and benefiu. Unless otherwise provided, nothing in this arrangement

^shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Recipient may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it
deemed best, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement

(4) The collective bargaining rî ts of employees covered by this arrangement. Including the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to
maintain union security and checkoff arrangements, as provided by applicable laws, policies and/or existing collective bargaining
agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, that this provision shall not be Interpreted so as to require the
Recipient to retain any such rights which ewst by virtue of a collective bargaining agreement after such agreement Is no longer In
effect

The Recipient agrees that it will bargain cdlectivety with the Union or otherwise arrange for the continuation of collective
bargaining, and that it will enter into agreements with the Union or arrange for such agreements to be entered Into, relative to ail
subjects which are or may be proper subjects of collective bargaining. at any time, applicable law or contracts permit or grant to
employees covered by this arrangement the right to utilize any economic measures, notWng In this arrangement shall be deemed
to foreclose the exercise of such right.

(5)(a) The Recipient shati provide to all affected employees sixty (60) days' notice of Intended actions which may result In
displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working forces as a result of the Project In the case of employees
represented by a Union, such notice shall be provided by certified mall through their representatives. The notice shall contain a full
and adequate ̂ tement of the proposed changes, and an estimate of the number of employees affected by the Intended changes,
and the number and classifications of any jobs within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient, including diose in the
employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21), available to be filled by such affected employees.

(5)(b) The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where notices Involve emplc^rees represented by a Union for
coUective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Recipient or the representatives of such employees, negotiations for the
purposes of reaching agreement with respect to the application of the terms and conditions of this arrangement shall commence
Immediately. These rwgoiiatlons shall Include determining the selection offerees from among the mass transportation employees
who may be affkted as a result of the Project, to establish which such employees shall be offered employment for which they are
qualified or can be trained. If no agreement Isreached within twenty (20) days from the commencement of negotiations, any patty
to the dispute may submit the matter to dispute settlement procedures in accordance with paragraph (IS) of this arrangement.
Unless the partis otherwise mutually agree In writing, no change In operations, services, fadlities or equipment within the
purview of tfils paragraph (5) shall oaur until after either: I) an agreement with respect to the application of the terms and
conditions of this arrangement to the intended changels) is reached; 2) the decision of the arbitrator has b^ rendered pursuant
to this subparagraph (b): or 3) an arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (15) of this arrangement determines that the Intended
change(s] may be instituted prior to the finalization of Implementing arrangements.

(5)(c) in the event of a di«>ute as to whether an Intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) may be Instituted at the
end of the 60-day notice period and before an Implementing agreement Is reached or a final arbitration decision is rendered
pursuant to subparagraph (b), any involved party may immediately submit that issue to arbitration under paragraph (15) of this
arrangement In any such arbitration, the arbitrator shall rely upon the standards and criteria utilized by the Surfece Transportation
Board (and its predecessor agency, the Interstate Commerce Commission) to address the "preconsummotion* issue In cases
involving employee protections pursuant to 49 U.S.C. Section 11326 (or Its predecessor, Section 5(2){f) of the interstate Commerce
Act, as amended), if the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold matter in any such arbitration, that the intended action is a
trackage rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, consotldaUon, or other similar transaction,
the burden shall then shift to the involved labor orgahizati6n(s) to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above,
the intended action should not be permitted to be Instituted prior to the effective dale of a negotiated or arbitrated Implementing
agreement If the Recipient fails to demonstrate that the Intended action is a tracka^ rights, lease proceeding, or similar
transaction, It shall be the burden of the Recipient to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above, the intended
action should be permitted to be Instituted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated Implementing agreement. For
purposes of any such arbitration, the time period within which the parties are to respond to the list of potential arbitrators



submitted by the American Arbitration Association Service shall be five (5) days, the notice of hearing may be given orally or by

facsimile, the hearing will be held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and. unless otherwise agreed to

by the parties, no later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the hearings, with five {S) additional days for mailing if
posthearing t>riefs are requested by either party. The intended chanp shall not be instituted during the pendency of any

arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c).

(5)(d} If ah int^ed change within the purview of this paragraph (5) Is instituted before an implementing agreement Is reached or a
flnal arbitration decision is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b). all employees affected shall be kept financially whole, as if the

noticed and Implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an Implementing
agreement or final artutration decision. This protection shall be In addition to the protective period defined In paragraph (14) of this
arrangement, which period shall begin on the eff^vedate of the implementing agreement or final arbitration decision rendered
pursuant to subparagraph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established as a result of a noticed and implemented action prior to
the consummation of an implementing agreement or final art>itration decision shall accumulate no benefits under this
arrang^ent as a result thereof during that period prior to the consummation of an Implementing agreement or final arbitration
decision pursuant to subparagraph (b).

{6)(a} Whenever an employee, retained In service, recalled to servfct, or employed by the Recipient pursxiant to paragraphs (5), (7)
(e), or (18) hereof Is placed in a worse position with respect to compertsation as a result of the Project, the employee shall be
considered a "displaced employee", and shall be paid a monthly 'displacement allowarKe" to be determined In accordance with
this paragraph. Said displacement allowance shall be paid each displaced employee during the protective period so long as the
employee Is unable, in the exercise of his/her seniority rights, to obtain a position producing compensation equal to or exceeding
the compensation the employee received in the position from vtrhlch the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent
general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

(6)(b) The displacement allowance shall be a monthly allowance determined by computing the total compensation received by the
employee, including vacation allowances and monthly compensation guarantees, and his/her total time paid for during the last
twelve (12) months In which the employee performed compensated service more than fifty per centum of each such months, based
upon the employee's normal work schedule, immediately preceding the date of his/her displacement as a result of the Project, and
by dividing separately the total compensation and the total time paid for by twelve, thereby producing the average monthly <.
compensation and the average monthly time paid for. Such allowance shall be adjusted fo reflect subsequent general wage
adjustments, IrKluding cost of living adjustments where provided for. if the displaced employee's compensation in his/her current
position Is less in any month during his/her protective period than the aforesaid average compmsation (adjusted to reflect
subsequent pneral wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the
difference, less compensation for any time lost on account of voluntary absences to the extent that the employee is not available
for service equivalent to his/her averap monthly time, but the employee shall be compensated In addition thereto at the rate of
the current position for any time worked in excess of the averap monthly time paid for. if a displaced employee fails to exerdse
his/her seniority rights to secure another position to which the employee is entitled under the then existing collective barpining
agreement, and whidi carries a wap rate and compensation exceeding that of the position which the employee elects to retain,
the employee shall thereafter be treated, for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the employee elects to
decline.

(6)(c) The displacement allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period In the event of the displaced
employee's resipation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her
employment.

(7){a) Whenever any employee Is laid off or otherwise deprived of employment as a result of the Pn^ect, In aaordance with any
collective bargaining agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered a "dismissed employee" and
shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowance to be determined in accordance with this paragraph. Said dismissal allowance shall
first be paid each dismissed employee on the thirtieth (30th) day following the day on which the employee is "dismissed" and shall
continue during the protective period, as follow.

Employee's length of service
prior m affect Period of protection

1 day to 6 years equivalent period

6 years or more 6 years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall be equivalent to one-twelfth (l/Uth) of the total compensation received by the employee in
the last twelve (12) months of his/her employment In which the employee performed compensation service more than fifty per
centum of each such month based on the employee's normal work schedule to the date on which the employee was first deprived



of employment as a result of the Project. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,
including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

(7)(b) An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employment and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the
employee holds Is abolished as a result of the Project, or when the position the employee holds is not abolished but the employee
loses that position as a result of the exerdse of seniority rights by an employee whose position Is abolished as a result of the Project
or as a t^lt of the exercise of seniority rights by other employees brought about as a result of the Project, and the employee is
unable to obtain another position, cither by the exercise of the employee's seniority righ^ or through the Recipient, in accordance
with subparagraph (e). In the absence of proper notice followed by an agreement or decision pursuant to paragraph (5) hereof, no
employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall be required to exerdse his/her seniority rî ts to
secure another position in order to qualify for a dismissal allowance hereunder.

(7)(c> Each employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall keep the Redplent Informed as to his/her current address and the
current name and address of any other person by whom the employee may be regularly employed, or If the employee is self-
employed.

(7)(d) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned incumbent of the position aboll^ed. If the position of an
emptoyce is abolished when the employee Is absent from service, the employee will be entitled to the dismissal allowance when

the employee Is available for service. The employee temporarily filling said position at the time it was abolished wiU be given a
dismissal allowance on the basis of that position, until the regular employee is available for service, and thereafter shall revert to
the employee's previous status and will be given the protections of the agreement in said position, if any are due him/her.

(7)(e) An employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to return to service by the employee's former erhployer;
notification.shall be in aaordance with tiie terms of the then-existing collective bargaining agreement If the employee is
represented by a union. Prior to such call to return to work by his/her employer, the employee may be required by the Recipient to
accejn reasonably comparable employment for whkh the mployee Is physically and mentally qualified, or for which the employee
can become qualified after a reasonable training or retraining period, provided It does not require a change In residence or infringe
upon the employment rights of other employees under then-edsting collective bargaining agreements.

{7)(f) When an employee who Is receiving a dismissal allowance apln commences employment In accordance with subparagraph
(e) above, said allowance shall cease while the employee is so reemployed, end the period of time during which the employee Is so
reemployed shall be deducted from the total period for which the employee is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance. During the
time of such reemployment. the employee shall be entitled to the protections of this arrangement to the extent they are applicable.

(7)(g) The dismissal allowance of any employee who Is otherwise employed shall be reduced to the extent that the employee's
combined monthly earnings from such other employment or self-employment, any benefits received from any unemployment
insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance exceed the amount upon which the employee's dismissal allowance Is based. Such
employee, or his/her union representadve, and the Recipient shall agree upon a procedure by which the Recipient shall be kept
currently Informed of the earnings of such employee in employment other than with the employee's former employer, including
self-employment, and the benefits received.

(7)(h) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the^ilureof the employee
without go^ cause to return to service in accordance with the applicable labor agreement, or to accept employment as provided
under subparagraph (e) above, or In the event of the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in
accordance with any laboragreementapplicable to his/her employment

(7) (I) A dismissed employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable
employment offered him/her for which the employee is physically and mentally qualified and does not require a change in the
employee's place of residence. Failure of the dismissed employee to comply with this obligation sfiali be grounds for
discontinuance of the employee's allowancr, provided that said dismissal allowance shall not be discontinued until final
determination is made either by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, or by final
arbitration decision rendered in accordance witfi paragraph 115) of this arrangement that such employee did not comply with this
oblipdon.

(8) In determining length of service of a displaced or disrnlssed empl^ee for purposes of this arrangement, such employee shall be
given full service credits in accordance with the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall be
given additional service credits for each month in which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as if the
employee were continuing to perform services in his/her former position.

(9) No employee shall be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6) or (7) hereof because of the
abolishment of a position to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been transferred, or promoted.



(10) No employee receiving a dismissal or displacement allowance shall be deprived, during the employee's protected period, of
any rights, privileges, or benefits attaching to his/her employment, including, without limitation, group life insurance,
hospitalization and medical care, free transportation for the employee and the employee's family, sick leave, continued status end
participation under any disability or retirement program, and such other employee benefits as Railroad Retirement, Sodal Security,
Workmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as well as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
under the same conditions and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining unit, in
active service or furloughed as the case may be.

(11)(a) Any employee covered by this arrangement who is retained in the service of his/her employer, or who is later restored to
service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance, and who Is required to change the point of his/her employment in
order to retain or secure active employment with the Redplertt In accordance with this arrangement, and who is required to move
his/her place of residence, shall be reimbursed for all expenses of moving his/her household and other personal effects, for the
traveling expenses for the employee and members of the employee's immediate family. Including living expenses for the employee
and the employee's immediate family, and for his/her own actual wage loss during the time necessary for such transfer and for a
reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed five (5) working days. The exact extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this
paragraph, and the ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon in advance between the Recipient and the affected
employee or the employee's representatives.

(ll)(b) If any such employee is laid off within three (3) years after chan^ng his/her point of employment In accordance with
paragraph (a) hereof, and elects to move his/her place of residence back to the origlital point of employment, the Recipient shall
assume the expertses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent provided in subpara graph (a)df tNs paragraph (11) and
paragraph (12)(a) hereof.

{ll)(c) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the
Recipient in writing within rtinety (90) days after the date on which the expenses were Incurred.

(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided in subpaiagraph (b), changes In place of residence, subsequent to the Initial changes as a

result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be
considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(8) The following conditions shall apply to the extent they are applicable In each instance to any employee who is retained in

the service of the empfoyer (or who Is later restored to service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance), who Is required
to change the point of his/her employment as a result of the Project, and Is thereby required to move his/l>er place of residence

If the employee Is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Recipient shall protect the employee against loss under such

contract, and in addition, shall relieve the employee from any further obligation thereunder.

If the employee holds an unexpired lease of a dwetling occupied as the employee's home, the Recipient shall protect the employee
from all loss and cost in securing the cancellation of said lease.

(12)(b) No claim for loss shad be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the Recipient in
writing within one year after the effective date of the change in residence

(12)(c) Should a controversy arise In respect to the value of the home, the loss sustained In its tale, the loss under a contract for
purchase, loss and cost In securing termination of a lease, or any other question In connection with these matters, it shall be
decided through a joint conference between the employee, or his/her union, and the Redpierrt. In the event they are urtable to
agree, the dispute or controversy may be referred by the Recipient or the union to a board of competent real estate appraisers
salacted In the following manner orw (1) to be selected by the representatives of the employee, and one (1) by the Recipient, and
thesa two, if unable to agree within thirty (30) days upon the valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter
to select a third appraiser or to agree to a method by which a third appraiser shall be seleaed, and failing such agreement, either
party may request the State and local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within ten (10) days a third appraiser,
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose jurisdiction shall be limited to determination of the Issues raised in
this paragraph only. A decision of a majority of the appraisers shall be required and said decision shall be final, binding, and
conclusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appraiser Including expenses of the appraisal board, shall be borne
equally by the parties to the proceedings. All other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, including the compensation
of the appraiser selected by such party.

(12)(d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph {ll)(b) hereof, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as
a result of the Project, whkh are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be



considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(e) "Change in residence" means transfer to a work location which is either (A) outside a radlusof twenty (20) rhiles of the
employee's former work location and farther from the employee's residence than was his/her former work location, or (B) is more
than thirty (30) normal highway route miles from the employee's residence and also farther from his/her residence than was the
employee's former work location.

(13)(a) A dismissed employee entitled to protection under this arrangement may. at the employee's option within twenty-one (21)
days of his/her dismissal, r«ign and On lieu of all other benefite and protections provided In this arrangement) accept a lump sum
payment computed in accordance with section (9) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

I .nyrti fUKwration Allowance

1 year and less tfian 2 years 3 months' pay
2"""'3"6""

10'.-'..15-12""

IS"" over 12 ■ •

In the case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay. computed by multiplying by 5 the normal dally eamlngs
(including regularly scheduled overtime, but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employee In the position last
occupied, for each month in which the employee performed service, will be paid as the lump sum.

Length of service shall be computed as provided in Sealon 7(b) of the Wasfungton Job Protection Agreement, as follows:

For the purposes of this arrangement, the length of service of the employee shall be determined from the date the employee last
acquired an employment status with the employing carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for each
month In which the employee performed any service (In any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be credited as
one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be interrupted by furlough In Instances where the employee
has a right to and does return to service when called. In determining length of service of an employee acting as an officer or other
official representative of an employee organtzation, tfie employee will be ̂ven credit for performing service while so engaged on
leave of absence from the service of a carrier.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by multiplying by 30 thenormal daily eamlngs (Including regularly scheduled overtime,
but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employeein the position last occupied priorto time of the employee's
dismissal as a result of the Project.

(14) Whenever used herein, unless the context requires otherwise, the term "protective period" moans that period of lime during
whkh a displaced or dismissed employee is to be provided protection hereunder and extends from the date on which an employee
is displaced or dismissed to the expiration of sfat (6) years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any
particular employee during which the employee is entiUed to receive the benefits of these provisions shall not continue for a longer
period following the date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of service, as shown by the records
and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the date of the employee's displacement or dismissal.

(15)(8) In the event that employee(s) are represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
Interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement, not otherwise governed by paragraph 12(c), the
Ubor-Management Relations Act, as amended, the Railway Ubor Act, as amended, or by impasse resolution provisions in a
collective bargaining or protective arrangement Involving the Recipient and the Union, which cannot be settled by the parties
thereto within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and binding
disputes settiement procedure acceptable to the parties. In the event they cannot agree upon such procedure, the dispute, claim,
or grievance may be submitted at the written request of the Recipient or the Union to final and binding arbitration. Should the
parties be unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral arbitrator within ten (10) days, any party may request the American
Arbitration Association to furnish, from among arbitrators who are then available to serve, five (5) arbitrators from which a neutral
arbitrator shall be selected. The parties shall, within five (5) days after the receipt of such list, determine by lot the order of
elimination and thereafter each shall, in that order, alternately eliminate one name until only one name remains. The remaining
person on the list shall be the neutral arbitrator. Unless otherwise provided. In the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph
(5) of this arrangement, the arbitration shall commence wltWn fifteen (15) days after selection or appointment of the neutral
arbitrator, and the decision shall be rendered within forty-five (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the
record closed. The decision shall be final and binding. All the conditions of the arrangement shall continue to be effective during
the arbitration proceedings.



{15)(b) The compensation and expenses of the neutral arbitrator, and any other jointly incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by
the Union(s) and Recipient, and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them.

(I5)(c) In the event that employeels) are not represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement which cannot be settled by the Redpleni and the
employeels) vwthln thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and
binding dispute settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, or in the event the parties cannot agree upon such a procedure,
the dispute or controversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labor for a final and binding dctermination.

(15)(d} In the event of any dispute as to whether or not a particular employee was affected by the Project, it shall be the obligation
of the employee or the representative of the employee to Identify the Project and specify the pertinent facts of the Project relied
upon. It shall then be the burden of the Redpient to prove that baors other than the Project affected the employee. The daiming
employee shall prevail if it is established that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have
affected the employee. (See Hodgson's Affidavit in Civil Action No. 825-71).

(16) The Recipient will be financially responsible for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary arrangements
so that any employee covered by this arrangement may file a written daim of its violation, through the Union, or directly if the
employee is outside the bargaining unit, with the Recipient within sixty (60) days of the date the employee is terminated or (aid off
as a result of the Project, or within eighteen (18) months of the date the employee's position with respect to his/her employment is
otherwise worsened as a result of the Project. In the latter case, if the events giving rise to the daim have oaurred over an
extended period, the 18-month limitation shall be measured from the last such event No benefits shall be ̂ yable for any period
prior to six (6) months from the date of the filing of any claim. Unless such daims are filed with the Redpient within said time
limitations, the Recipient shall thereafter be relieved of all liabilities and obligations related to the claim.

The Recipient will fully honor the daim, making appropriate payments, or will give notice to the dalmant or his/her representative
of the basis for denying or modifying such claim, ̂ ng reasons therefore If the Recipient fails to honor such claim, the Union or
non-bargaining unit employee may invoke the following procedures for further joint investigation of the claim by pving notice in
writing. Within ten (10) days from the receipt of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to the disposition of the claim and ̂ all jointly take such steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtain from any
third party such additional factual materials as may be relevant In the event the Redpient rejects the claim, the daim may be
processed to artNtration as hereinabove provided by paragraph (15).

(17) Nothing in this arrangement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may
have under existing employment or collective bargaining agreements or otherwisr, provided that there shall be no duplication of
benefits to any employee, and, provided further, that any benefit under this arrangement shall be construed to Indude the
conditions, responsIbHItles, and obligations accompanying such benefit. This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any
rights of any Union or of any represented employee derived from any other agreement or provision of federal, state or local law.

(18) During the employee's protective period, a dismissed employee shall, if the employee so requests, in writing, be granted
priority of employment or reemployment to fill any vacant position within the jurisdiction and control of the Redpient reasonably
comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed, including those in the employment of any entity bound by this
arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herein, for which the employee is, or by training or retraining can become, qualified; not, ,
however, in contravention of collective bargaining agreements related thereto. In the event such employee requests such training '
or re-training to fill such vacant position, the Recipient shall provide for such training or re-training at no cost to the employee. The
employee shall be paid the salary or hourly rate provided for In the applicable collective bargaining agrMment or otherwise
established in personnel polides or practices for such position, plus any displacement allowance to wWch the employee may be
otherwise entitied. If such dismissed employee who has made such request fails, without good cause, within ten (10) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed for which the employee is qualified, or for which
the employee has satisfactorily completed such training, the employee shall, effective at the expiration of such ten-day period,
forfeit all rights and benefits under this arrangemenL

As between employees who request employment pursuant to this paragraph, the following order where applicable shall prevail In
hiring such employees:

(a) Employees in the craft or class of the vacancy stoll be given priority over employees vrithout seniority In such craft or class;

(b) As between employees having seniority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in
that craft or class, as shown on the appropriate seniority roster, shall prevail over junior employees;

(c) As between employees not having seniority In the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior OTployees, based upon their service In
the crafts or classes in which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate seniority rosters, shall prevail over junior
employees.



(19) The Recipient will post, in a prominent and accessible place, a notice stating that the Recipient has received federal assistance
under the Federal Transit statute and has agreed to comply with the provisions of 49 U.S.C., Section 5333(b). This notice shall also
Specify the terms and conditions set forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shall maintain and keep on file all
relevant books and records in sufficient detail as to provide the basic Information necessary to the proper application,
administration, and enforcement of this arrangement aiwl to the proper determination of any claims arising thereunder.

(20) In the event the Project is approved for assistance under the statute, the foregmng terms and cor>ditlorw shall be made part of
the contract of assistance between the federal government and the applicant for federal funds and between the applicant and any
recipient of federal funds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be
Independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, and by any covered employee or his/her represeritative, in
accordance with Its terms, nor shall any other employee protective agreement merge Into this arrangement, but each shall be
independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto. In accordance with Its terms.

(21) This arrangement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and no provisions, terms, or
obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever by reason of the
arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate the system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publicly - or privately-owned, which shall undertake the management, provision
and^r operation of the Project services or the Recipients transit system, or any part or portion thereof, under contractual
arrangements of any form with the Recipient, Its successors or assigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this arrangement
and accept the responsibility with the Recipient for full performance of these conditions. As a condition prec^ent to any such
cootrartual arrangements, the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise, body or agency to so agree.

(22) In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation system or services, or any part or portion
thereof, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured employment. In comparable positions, within the jurisdiction and
control of the acquiring entity, Including positions In tt>e employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to
patagraph (21). All parsons employed under the provitions of tNs paragraph shall be appointed to such comparable positions
without examination, other than that required by applicable federal, state or federal law or arilectlve barpining agreement, and
shall be aedited with their years of service for purposes of seniority, vacations, and pensions In accordance with the records of
tiitir former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreements.

(23) The employees covered by this arrangement shall continue to receive any applicable coverage under Sodal Security, Railroad
Retirement, Workmen's Compensation, unemployment compensation, and the like. In no event shall these benefits be worsened
as a result of the Project.

(24) In the event any provision of this arrangeihent is held to be Invalid, or otherwise unenforceaWe under the federal, state, or
local law, In the context of a particular Project, ttie remaining provisions of this arrangement shall not be effected and the invalid or
unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the Recipient and the interested Union representatives, if any, of the employees
Involved for purpose of adequate replacement under Section 5333(b). If such negotiation shall not result In mutually satisfactory
agreement any party may Invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary of Labor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee
protective arrangements for application only to the particular Project, which shall be incorporated in this arrangement only as
applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or reliel

(25) if any employer of the employees covered by this arrangement shall have rearranged or adjusted its forces in anticipation of
the Project, with the effect of depriving an employee of benefits to which the employee should be entitled under this arrangement,
the provisions of this arrangement shall apply to such employee as of the date when the employee was so affected.
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient Agency: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be re^ostve to the Federei FuadUtg AccoutoabUity end
Trmupertney Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $1,677^79.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.513
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 (COMBINED) RCC PROGRAM APPLICATIONS

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 1385-2021-4

Federal Award Date: TED

Contact ipformatioD for sub-awarding official:

Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Patrick.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: TrI-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Subrecipient DUNS number 73975708

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 38RUi & 6LZU4
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal mdirect cost rate: 12^
(An approvedfederally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414
Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph (f)).

Subaward Period of performance:



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Start Date: 7/1/21 End Date: 6/30/23

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this action (eontract/amendmentr.

For FFY: 2021 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $475,000.00

Total amonnt of FTA sob-award committed to the subrecinient foririttei eontraet A amendments):

For FFY; 2021 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $475,000.00

Pass-through reaulrementa:

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to meet all requirement
imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal
award.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-throu^ entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., a^es to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipicnts records and financial
statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: Click or ta

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient Agency: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description; (Asre^uirtitoh«rtspoasi9ttoth*FeieT^Fun£ngAeeounttMBtyMd
Ttanspereucy Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $8,643|178.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number. 20.509
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN):1385-2021-5

Federal Award Date: TED

Contact information for sub-awardine ofBclal:

Name: Patrick C. Hcrlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Patrick.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT^s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrednient Information;

Subrecipient Name: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.,
Subrecipient DUNS number 73975708

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 38RUI & 6L2U4

Name of authorizing subrecipient ofilcial: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CXO

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, ifno such nte exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), oraDeMinimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414
Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph (/)).



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/21 End Date; 6/30/23

Total amoont of FTA 8ub«award obUgated bvthis action (cohtraet/amenimenty.

ForFFY:2021 Section: 5311 Amount:$750,700.00

Total amount of FTA gub-award committed to the subrecinient toritinBi contract A ameHimena):

For FFY: 2021 Section: 5311 Amount: $750,700.00

Pass-through requirements;

The subrccipicni, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to meet all requirement
imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal
award.

The subrecipient. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) in^oscs on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial
statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning cioscout of the subaward.

Date: Click

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard

Title of authorizing subrccipicni official: CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:
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To the Board of Directors of CERTinED pibuc accountants
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate woiteboro • north conw
Berlin, New Hampshire mver • CONCORD

STOAIHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDtTORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Ina and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Uanagemenfa Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United
States of America: this includes the design, Implementation, and maintenance of Internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In
Government Audning Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entit/s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management. \as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion )
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County, Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30. 2020, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Sii/nmarfzecf Comparative information
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2019
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements In our report dated Octot)er 21, 2019. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which U has t>een derived.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unlforrn Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consoiidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from arKl
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The iriformation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, iriduding
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28. 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over flnarwial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing
Sfendards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 28, 2020
North Conway. New Hampshire



TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFrLIATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF RNANCIAL POSITfON
JUNE 30.2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accoonts receivable
Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

2020

2,257,081
798,937

1,322,852
47,000

307,017
102,430

ZLfi52

4.911.199

2019

1.400,750
583,963

1,274,083
47,000
231,161
85,888
34.037

3.6S6.880

PROPERTY

Property and equ^ment
Less accumulated depredation

Property, net

OTH^ ASSETS
Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

UABILmES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABIUTIES
Currant portion of long term del}t
Current portion of capital lease obftgations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current iiabiiities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debL net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Total liat>ilIUe8

12,344,805
(5,601,944)

6.742.861

384.711

437,843
3,554

180,427
243.779
49,059
137,304
181,463
850,982

2.084.411

4.792.557

6.876.968

12,086,152
(5.176.535)

6.907,617

418.936

$ 12.038.771 $ 10.983.433

148;449
4,870

221,571
204,079
210,952
89,524
197,157
598,195

1,674.797

5,227.835
3,355

6.005.987

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

4,565,253

596.550

5,161,803

3,399,192
678,254

4.077.446

$ 12.038.771 $ 10.983,433

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



TWI.COUWTY COMMLIMrrV ACTION PROGRAM. tWC. AND AFFIUATE

CONSOUDATED STATEOaENT Of ACnVITIES
FOR THE YEAR EMDEO JUKE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEARSUKCTIARgED COMPARATIVE tKFORMA-nON

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants end contracts

Program ftjndbis
UtaOy programs
bvidnd contrlbultons
ConMbuOons

Fundratstng
Rerttal inoome -

Interasl income

Gain (lou) on disposal of property
Loss on vMlta down of property held tor sale
Other revenue

Total revenues and ottier support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support and
net assets released from restricdons

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Services:

AgertcyFund
Head Start

Guardlanstdp
Transportation ■■

VoksMeer

Woildoroa Developmanl
CarroO County Dental
Support Center
Homeless

Energy ertf Ccihnuir^ Development
Elder

Housing Services

Total program services

Supporting AcdvtUes:
General and administrative

Fundralsino

Total supporting activities

Total funcUonai expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF Y^

NET ASSETS, END OP YEAR

Without Donor

Rastrtedofw

I  14,425,341
1.084,133
1,923,653
455,826
326,215
32,544

635,559

923

2,225

4.379

16,691,298

665,176

19.456.474

1,047,356
2.769.065
769,597
991.604

04345
348,114
653,810
558.244

800,148
7.824.201
1.149,136
220,900

17324,920

1.082.613
2.860

1.065.493

16,290,413

1,166,061

3.399.192

With Donor 2020 2019

Btttiifitlfioi Total Total

8  463,472 8  14,909,313 8 14.475,114

1.084.133 1.167309

1.923,653 1387.103
455326 477,167

326315 230,986
32344 39303

635,559 625.046

923 643

2,225 (32.692)
. (255,492)

4 379 196 364

483,472 19.374.770 18310,851

<665.1761

(81.704)

(81.704)

676354

19.374.770

1,047.356
2,769,065
769,597
991.504

94,845
346,114
653,810
556344
800,148

7,824301
1,140,138
220.000

1.062.613
2.860

1.065.493

18390.413

1.064357

4.077.446

16310.651

950.639

2.756,762
767341
916,089

118,408

354363
747,474

355308
714,068

7,768.660
1.191.571
172.852

17.224.920 16.635,151

1,032,207

9.895

1.042.102

17.877353

333.598

3.743.848

8  4.565353 8 S96.5S0 8 5.161.803 8 4.077.446

See Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemenU



TRl-CQUNTY CQMMUMrTY ACTtON PROGRAM. INC, AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUOATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVmES
ChanBO in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activitles:

Depredption and arrrartizafion
(Gain) loss on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sate

(Increase) decrease in assets;
Accounts receivsbia

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid e^^enses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts wable

Accrued compensated absences
Accruedsaia^
Accrued expenses

Refundabia advances

Other RablDtlas

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVmES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTINO ACTtVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACnVmES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCINO ACTIVmES
Net repayment on demand note payable
Repayment on long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN RNANCWG ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AMD RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

C^ paid during the year for.

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donated

2020 2019

1,084,357 $  333,598

436,197 448,556

(2,225) 32,692

•
255.492

(48,769) (117,426)
(75,656) (16,954)

(16,5M) 1,683

(43.845) (B.397)

(41.144) (15,705)
39,700 958

(161.893) 23,444

47,780 (42,364)

(15.694) 6,088

252.787 211.027

1.454.651 1.110,892

4.495 14,283

(273.711) (95.588)

(269.2161

(146.684)
(4.671)

(1S0.565)

1,035,080

2.403.649

S 3.436.729

131.879

(61.306)

(616.022)
(141,273)
_J£446)

(661.741)

367,846

2.035.603

$ 2.403.649

152,078

18,630

See Notes to Consolldatod Financial Statements
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IMC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Oroanizatlon and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate. Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have l>een eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's mariy individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit sen/ices, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-Income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.

8



Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 413
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door sen/ice by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular sen/ice area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Voiunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

over 27,955 hours yearly.

\/\/orkforco Devafopment

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.



The Organization Is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroit County Dental
Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
amay of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
slidir)g fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Stipporf Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include; crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Hometess

Homeless sen/ices include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help presen/e older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the corrimunity.

10



Low-Income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs-
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals iri 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming; The Coos County ServiceLInk Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
arrd operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Vtle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost F^rinciples and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major prograrn. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States arid the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Unifonn Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

11



Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codificalion (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report Information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions Include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the pnmary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary In
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $596,550 and $678,254
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
dortornmposed restrictions. Support that is restricted Is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
In which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is. when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets wi^ donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

12



Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state avirarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
recelvabte balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially proIof>g the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related as^ts.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depredation expense related to administrative assets is induded in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the Indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materialiy prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Departinent of Housing and Urban Development. Rental Increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
receiv^ from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or Incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $181,463 and $197,157 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns In the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2016.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty In income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax retum.
The Organization does not believe th^y have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for Income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from Income tax^ under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retrement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed In the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30. 2020 and 2019, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the

Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
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Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are plac^ in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial st^ements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are record^ at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted Interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are redasslfted to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019. there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $307,017 and $231,161,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements In conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of Its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

DepfiBc/atfb/i expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of ̂notional expenses.

Otfier occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple prograrris. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.
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The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submite an Indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. EJepartment of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1. 2019, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement \vith the U.S. Department of Health and Human Senrices, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 10,4%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was approximately 10.82%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising Is expens^ as Incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $25,483 and
$11,698, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectivety adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.' The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt Issuance costs is riot affected by the ASU.
Amortteation expense of $887 has been included with Interest expense In the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2020 and 2019.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230): Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity in
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. The arftendmerits require that a statement of
cash flows explain the change durir^ the period In the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally de^ribed as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling t>eginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the Organization's fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020 and has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.
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During the /ear ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and. the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting
standard is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional.
ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines whether a resource provider
is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant. If the re^urce provider does
receive commensurate value from the grant recipient the transaction is an
exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the
transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June
30, 2020 and 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material
impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, np
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial pperational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that rriight
be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Organization,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020
and 2019:

2020 2019

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 2,257,081 $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1,274,083
Pledges receivable 307.017 231.161

Total financial assets 3.886.950 2.905.994
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Less amounts not available to be

used within one year
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less net assets with time restrictions to be
met in less than a year

Amounts not available within one year

598,550

f410.015)

186.535

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months s 3 7Q0.415

678,254

f565.176^

113.078

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,660,000 and $2,786,600 respectively,
at June 30,2020 and 2019.

NOTES. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple finandai institutions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was approximately $2,653,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2020

$ 2,257,081
796,937
384.711

i 3.438.7^9

2019

$1,400,750
563,983
418.936

403.649

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $20,040 and $20,010, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019. These amounts are Included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2020 and 2019 was $174,626 and $174,451, respectively, and the Organization
was In compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Senrices Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an off^tting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2020 and 2019
was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively, and is included in ttie restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. This was donated to another non-profit
Organization during the year ended June 30,2020.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30,2020 and 2019 was $190,045 and $179,277, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4, INVENTORY

In 2020 and 2019, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
Inventory is taken annually. Cost is detemiined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $102,430 and $85,886, respectively.

NOTES. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2020 and
2019, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $243,779 and $204,079,
respectively.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 9,810,288
2,105,950

4,727
423.840

3;i2.344.805

Accumulated

Depreciation

Net

Book Value

$3,753,302 $6,056,986
1,848.642 257,308

4,727
423.840

^6-742.861

Property consists of the following at June 30,2019:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9,709,749
1,950.063

2,500

423.840

$3,469,618 $ 6,240,131
1,708,917 241,146

2,500
:  423.840

^ 5 178.535

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not ihcluded in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$435,310 and $447,669, respectively.

The OTganization has property held for sale at June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounting
to $47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of ftnanclal position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492 in 2019.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of
the following:
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2020 2019

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthty
instalinfients of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
Installment due January 2027. $ 110,824 $ 124,867

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthty
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 307,719 328,896

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthty
installments of $459. including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021. 4,478 9,618

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthty installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 4,228 7,642

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly Installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due Juty 2021. 3,948 7,385

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthty installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 705 2,331

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organizarion's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 7,294 9,739

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
Installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 387,227 395,429
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2020 019

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or prindpal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

2,547,308 2.634,595

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

5.241.331 5,388,102
(10.931) (11.818)

5,230,400 5,376,284
(437.843) (148.449)

S 4.792:557 S 5.227.835

The scheduled maturities of long4erm debt as of June 30.2020 were as foDows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2021 $ 437,843
2022 123.107
2023 485,399
2024 118,243

2025 122,486
Thereafter 3.954.253

h 5.241.331

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.
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NOTE 8. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital (eases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included In capital leases at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consisted of
the following;

2020 2019

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
Interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature In November
2020. $ 1,213 $ 3,291

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 944 2,261

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease Is
secured by a copier and will mature In May 2021. 1.397 2.673

3,554 8,225

Less current portion f3.554i f4.870)

S  :

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2020 were as
follows:

Year ending
June 30 Amount

2021 S
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NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement
Borrovinngs under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30. 2020 and 2019. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Senrices. The Organization was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. The unsecured
revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year ended June 30,2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Oiganization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,004 and $181,127, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30,2020, are as follows;

Years ending
Juno 30 Amount

2021 $ 127,803
2022 7.321

$ 135.124

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their sen/ices to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind In the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized,by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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Many other individuals have donated signiftcant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of i^s support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
approximately $14,380,020 (74%) and $13,951,828 (77%). respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue wras received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of Its support frorh the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 68% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development

The majority of Comerstone Housing North. Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for v4iich operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30,2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Temporary Municipal Funding
FAR

Restricted Buildings
DOE

FAP/EAP

Loans - HSGP

RSVP Program Funds
Donations to Maple Fund
RSVP - Matter to Balance

Loans - HHARLF

$ 307,017 $ 231,161
102,998 117,470

85,713 87,541
46,287 -

24,350 11,290

22,029 19,907
5,887 7,056
1,571 1,571
500 -

104 -

26



BWP/HRRP Program 94
10 Bricks Shelter Funds * 142,190
Support Center * 25,939
Weatherization " - 25,000
Senior Meals ■ 5,130
Head Start :

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 596.550

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and lime restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Co/itfnaenc/es

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
- ownership of a 1.2-ecre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contf/yqenc/es

During the year ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
2020, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.
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note 15. REPLACEIVIENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD. the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $155,278 and $129,407 we're held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2020 and 2019. respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon Hub's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $31,049 and $46,514 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted. HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment

NOTE 16.RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28.
2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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CERTIFIED PUBI.1C ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONWff
DOVER • CONCORD

TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. S7RATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDrTORS* REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPUANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDiTING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc..(a nonprofit organization), which comprfee the statement of financial
position as of June 30. 2020. and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 28. 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of fiie financiai statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program lnc.'s intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program inc.'s Intemal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the Cmited purpose described In the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in Intemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not Identify any
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of Hs compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompiiance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompiiance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing ̂ andards In considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUMITY ACTipM PROtSRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPUANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'8 major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2020. Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'s major federal programs are
identified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

ManagemenVs Responsibility
Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program lnc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Pedera/ Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a msyor federal program occurred. An
audit Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program lnc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Mpjor Federai Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, wi^ the
types of compDance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30; 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. is responsible for establishing arid
maintaining effective Internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In, planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on Internal control over compliance In
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nonccmpUance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompiianoe with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program v^il not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliarTce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in Internal control over compliance, yet Important enough to merit
attention by those <^arged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this sedion and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
corhpliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitabte for any other purpose.

October 28,2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified oplniori on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.

2. No significant defldencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Intemaf Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Arxordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-Couhty Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in intemal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Fhvgram and
on Intemal Control over Compliance In Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported In this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. CSBG - CFDA #93.569

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Home Energy Assistance (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT
I

None
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List of Key Personnel and Salaries:

Christine Lee - Director of Transportation - $41,600 annual salary

Jeanene McDonald - Operations Manager - $35,360 annual salary



Christine A. Lee

Objectives

I am looking for a work environment that will allow me to grow in my career as well as challenge

me. I have many years of clerical experience that will allow me to learn any job quickly and
easily.

Education

June 2005 I Diploma—Mountain View Jr/Sr High School, Kingsley, PA
• Magna cum laude graduate i

April 2019 I Southern New Hampshire University, Online Program
•  BS in Accounting

Experience

July 2020 - Presentl Director of Transportation
Tri-County Transit | Berlin, NH

•  Supervise all personnel, programs, and projects under Transit Services
•  Responsible for recruiting, hiring, training, supervision, and discharging of program

personnel.

• Oversee, write and manage grants and financial resources to support Division Programs

•  Develop & implement strategies for improving program deliverables and program fiscal
performance

•  Develop program fundraising and marketing strategies
•  Provide regular supervision to Program Managers diat includes joint review of program

fiscal reports and budget performance.
•  Represent programs in the Division through participatioD in state and local initiatives

relative to program/division goals for service delivery and is consistent with furthering
the mission of the Division, and TCCAP as a whole.

•  Responsible for general oversight of Programs within the Division, allocation of
resources, revenues, expenditures and budget performance.

•  Develop program budgets with Program Managers. Monitor budget performance and
take corrective action as necessary, in order to meet program fiscal goals.

• Handles all billing for Transit division



•  Compile monthly numbers and prepare proper invoices
•  Bank deposits as needed
•  Records & processes all invoices that are received - sends for payment
•  Other duties as assigned

July 2019 - June 202o|Administrative Assistant (40 hours per week)
Tri-County Transit | Berlin, NH

• Handles all billing for Transit division
•  Compile monthly numbers and prepare proper invoices
•  Bank deposits as needed

•  Records & processes all invoices that are received - sends for payment
•  Schedules bus routes for entire fleet (9 buses)
•  Handles processing of daily bus schedules & ensures they are received by the proper

drivers

• Arranges for volunteer drivers to assist clients with long distance me(hcal trips as needed
•  Provides back up for Director and Operations Manager when they are not in office
• Works on admissions for Town and County Funding, attends meetings, follows up on

approved admi^ions

•  Other duties as assigned

November 2018 - Present! Bookkeeper & Dispatch (40 hours per week)
Tri-County Transit j Berlin, NH

•  Handles all billing for Transit division
•  Compile monthly numbers and prepare proper invoices

•  Bank deposits as needed
•  Records & processes all invoices that are received - sends for payment
•  Schedules bus routes for entire fleet (9 buses)

• Handles processing of daily bus schedules & ensures they are received by the proper
drivers

•  Arranges for volunteer drivers to assist clients with long distance medical trips as needed
• Other duties as assigned

June 2016-November 20i8|Docket Clerk (40+ hours per week)
Vermont Superior Court | Guildhall, VT

•  Responsible for entering new cases in the Criminal, Civil, Family and Probate dockets
•  Record court hearings
•  Prepare paperwork for mailing to parties
•  Prepare Motions that are received for the Judge to review
•  Prepare weekly deposits

• Handle after hour Relief from Abuse call outs

•  Assist clients as they appear at the courthouse or when they call in with questions



WJl

Refer clients to proper resources for legal advice

Assist in other courts (Caledonia County, St. Johnsbury, VT)

Other duties as assigned

•  Prepare & review documents for accuracy prior to submitting to Judge
•  Compile data and file work fix)m outside attorneys to re-create files destroyed in April

2018 fire

September 2015-May 20i6|Guest Services Agent (hours varied)
The Inn At Thorn Hill | Jackson, NH

•  Responsible for assisting guests with checking in and departing
•  Handled reservations over the phone as well as ones received via email

•  Handled guests requests as well as issues/complaints that arose
•  Booked dinner reservations as well as spa reservations

•  Responsible for scheduling meetings with staff (both in NH as well as remote with our
owner)

September 30, 2013-June 2015 |Col1ections Officer (40 hours per
week)

Northway Bank | Berlin, NH

•  Responsible for handling delinquency calls & letters for customers that are past due on
loans or have overdrawn checking & savings accounts.

•  Handled scheduling meetings with loan committees and board members

•  File claims and subsequent paperwork with the Berlin & Plymouth Small Claims Courts.
•  Represent Northway Bank at small claims hearings
•  Process foreclosure paperwork

•  Prepare Monthly Board Reports for the Collections Department
•  Gather information needed and process month end paperwork

March 4, 2008 - January 18, 2013 | Intake Officer-
Finance/Enforcement Officer (37.5 hours per week)
Susquehanna County Domestic Relations | Montrose, PA

Intake OflBcer;

• Deal with clients as they walk in the door

•  Set up new cases & complete interviews with clients
• Register orders to other counties/states; process incoming registrations
• Transfer orders to other counties/states; process incoming transfers
•  Deal with interstate/international cases

Finance/Enforcement Officer:

• Monthly bank reconciliation paperwork
• Handle all court costs billings

•  Daily deposits to the bank

• Handle payments as they come into the office



lo.

Enforce existing support orders

Prepare paperwork for contempt court when defendant's fail to pay

December 2004-March 2008 | CSA-Regional Manager (40+ hours per
week)

Movie Gallery Corporation | Various locations in Pennsylvania

Assist customers with video rentals

Prepare daily deposit
Prepare employees payroll and submit for processing
Maintain accoimts payable for each store I worked at
Qose out register at the end of shift/night
Open & close store
Hire/fire/train employees

Initiated new hire orientations

Order merchandise

Responsible for quarterly inventory
Handled weekly reporting of numbers to corporate

Prepared weekly schedules for employees
Set up displays in the store according to requests from corporate
Oversaw District and Store Mangers

Worked with stores within region to ensure that weekly numbers and sales promotions
were being met
Assisted in training district and store managers

Skills

•  Proficient in Microsoft Office Suites 2007 & 2010

•  Proficient in data entry - quick learner of new software programs
•  Fast, efficient, highly motivated worker

•  Comfortable using any office equipment such as a fax, scanner, copier, etc
•  Comfortable working individually or in a group setting

•  Good training skills
• Highly organized and efficient worker
•  Comfortable with scheduling meetings online or face-to-face

^References available upon request.
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JEANENE MCDONALD

jincdonaId®tccap.org

Professional Summary

I am one who goes above and beyond basic administrative tasks and takes on multiple projects at once.
Excellent work ethic and strength in boosting company morale. 1 can be put in various positions and
excel.

SkiUs

• Highly Motivated • Team building

• Professional • Multi-line phone proficiency

• Flexible Critical • thinker

• Accurate and detailed • Project planning

• Excellent planner and coordinator • HIPAA compliance

• Works well under pressure Have • some knowledge in grant writing Pleasant
•  demeanor Dependable •

Work History

Operations Manager, 07/01/2017 to Current

Tri County Cap Transit - 31 Pleasant Street, Berlin, NH

• Follow Department of Transportation (DOT) policies and procedures.

• Lead, direct and manage fleet drivers and dispatch staff.

• Hiring, training, evaluating performance from staff

• Participate in the development and plan of annual budgets

• Ensure operations are compliant with DOT standards for safety and insurance purposes.

Dispatcher, 04/2015 to Current 07/1/2017

Tri County Cap Transit - 31 Pleasant Street, Berlin, NH

• Assign drivers routes, destinations, and timelines.

• Keep in close contact with drivers who are on the road.

• Proficient at using dispatch software.

• Responsible for keeping, verifying, and monitoring driver daily logs.

• Attend quarterly staff meetings and take minutes for those meetings.

• Effectively work with co-workers

• Provided outstanding customer service.
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Assistant guest services manager, 11/2014 to 04/2015

Wildcat Mountain Ski Area - Gorham, NH

• Cross-trained and backed up other customer service managers.

• Hired seasonal staff. ^

• Made out weekly schedules.

• Oversees all guest services operations, including front desk, reservations, and ticket sales.

• Ensure quality and guest satisfaction.

• Good through knowledge of scheduling software.

• Daily Deposits for all departments.

Assistant manager, 04/2012 to 01/2014

Toys R Us - Settlers Green, North Conway NH

• Organized private mailbox system using mailbox manager software.

• Reported to the district manager regarding all store and staff issues.

• Managed staff of 4 sales associates, 2 team leaders.

• Hiring staff and making work schedules.

• Daily Deposits.

Housing coordinator, 03/1999 to 09/2011

Northern Human Services - Berlin, NH

• Planned and coordinated logistics and materials for board meetings, committee meetings and

staff events.

• Ordered and distributed office supplies while adhering to a fixed office budget.

• Screened applicant resumes and coordinated both phone and in-person interviews.

• Drafted biweekly time sheets for Twelve (12) employees.

• Organized all new hire, security and temporary paperwork.

• Had to adhere to state rules and regulations.

• Follow state procedures on running a state funded facility.

• Follow a tight budget, to keep in state guidelines.

• Worked closely with other agencies.

• Open lines of communications with all areas of the Agency.

• Responsible'for working closely with the case management and intake staff.

• Develop, implement and/or supervise programs and services in support of
assigned housing program

• Complied with state and Federal regulations for eligibility determination and
record-keeping.



• Prepared for state and Federal audits and provided regular reports to superiors

and the Board of Directors.

• Perform case coordination, clinician collaboration, crisis prevention, crisis interventions to at least

15 consumers living with a severe mental illness.

• Demonstrates a working knowledge of public social service programs and policies.

Education
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